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CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTICNH

Clvil penalties are assessed for violations of the Surface Mining Control
and Reclamatlon Act of 1977 (Public lLaw 95-87) to "deter vielations of the Act
and to ensure maximum compliance with the Act.” Title 30, Part 845, of the
Caoda of Federal Regulations {CFR) spaclfies procedures for the 0ffice of Sur-
face Mining Reclamation and Enforcement (OSHRE)} to follow when assessing such

penalties.
FURPOSE OF THE MANUAL

The purpose of this manual is to provide practlical, consistent guldelines
for implementing the OSMRE civil penalty assessment program. It provides
spacific information and processes to use in determining whether a civil penel-

ty should be assaessed against a mine oparator or permittee and, if so, the

amount of the penalty.

The main text of this msnual is dividad inte four additional chapters.
Chapter 2 defines and describes types of enforcement actions: HNotlces of
Violations (NOV}, Imminent Harm Cessatlion Qrders (IHCQ), and Fallure to Abate
Cessatlon Ordera (FTACD). Chapter 3 discusses assessment criteris, while
Chapter 4 discusses the specific mechaniceg of the various assassment types.
Chapter 5 presents miscellaneous matters relating to the penalty assessment

process. Appendix contents are summarized balow:

List of violations of SMCRA, the impacts of aach violatiom,
and applicable regulations.

Appapdix B: Specific examples of administrative/obstruction and enviren-
mental violations to conslider whan assessing penaltles.

Appandix G: Forms used in the penslty asgessment process.
ggnggﬂi;hﬁ! Comversion table for determining the civil penalty amount,
Appesndix E: List of initial assessment polints.

Appendix F: Gloszsary of technlcal terms.
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EREORCEMENT OQVERVIEW

The authoricy te assess civil peralties for violations of the Surface
Mining Contrel and Beclamation Act is stated in Section 518(a);

«».any permittes who vicolates any permit condition or who
violates any other provision of this title [Title V], may
ba assesgad a civil penalty by tha Secretary, axcept that
1f such violation leads to the issuance of a cesgation
order under Section 521, the civil penalty shall be
asgesged. [Underscores added,]

This sectlen of the Act Indicates that all oparators and permittess issued
a ceggatlon order must be assessed a ecivil penalty, while those {ssued an NOV
may be assessed a penalty. The Act includes four criteria to be used in deter-
mining whether to assess a penalty; these criteria are desoribed in Chapter 3.



GHAPTER 2

TYPES OF ENFORGEMENT ACTIONS.

Thiz chapter describes the snforcement acticns provided by the Surface
Mining Control and Reclamatlon Act (SMCRA): the Notice of Violation, the Immi-
nent Harm Cessation Order, and the Fallure to Abate Caessation Ordar.

General performance standards for surface coal mining and reclamation
oparations are prescribed in ths Act and the regulations. The intent of thess
requirements is to ensure that sutface coal mining operations are conducted in
a manner that minimizes adverse envircomental effacts and prevents personal
injury or property damage. Accordingly, the Act and regulatioms c¢call for
inspections of surface coal mining operations as defined in Sectien 700.5.

Whan a violstion has occurred and OSMRE {5 the regulatory authoricy (BA),
& written notice is served to the coal mine operator or permittese that the
viclation musat be corrected. When OSHMRE is pot the RA and an OSMRE inspecter
determines that a violation af the BA's approvad program hea occurred, & Ten-
Day Notice (IDN) is issued. When an OSMRE imnspector determines that a vicla-
tion poses Imminent danger to the enviremment or to public health or safety,
even though an approved state program exists, an Imminent Harm Cessation Order

iz {=sued.

NOTICE OF YICLATION

For most wiclations of the Act, the regulations, or a permlt comndition,
the inspactor iszsues a Notice of Vislation, WViolations regulcing in an NOV
usua;ly are less sarious than those written for an Imminent Harm GCessation
Order. an NOV describes tha violation, location, regquired abatement, and
abatement tima pariaod,

IMMINENT HARM CESSATION ORDER

if an inspector determines that a viclatlon, condition, or practice poses
imminent danger to the environment or to publle health or safety, then an
3



Imminent Harm Cessation Order {s fssued. The gauersl distinction between an
ROV and an IHCC L8 one of degree.-an IHCO 1ia issued when the viglation, condi-
tlion, &ar practice:

. Creates an {mminent danger to the health or safety of the
public

ar

» Is cauaing or can be expacted to cause aignificant, immi-
nent envirormental harm to land, alr, or watar rescurces.

Like the NOV, the IHCO describes the vielation, laocation of the violationm,
requirad shatement measures, and abatement time perfod. It states that the
oparator or permittee 1s required to immediately caase all cperetions, or thar
portion of the oparation relevant to the violation, and operations may rasume

only after abatement 18 completa,

Tha FTACC i{s issusd when an operater or permittee doas not comply with a
praviausly {ssued NOV within the time prescribed for abatsment. Like the
THCD, the operator or permittes is required to immediately cease sll opera-
tiong, or that portion of the oparation relavant to the viclation, and opera-
tions may resume only after abatement is complete.

Sample NOV and FTACO forms are in Appendix C.



CHAFTER. 3

ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

For each NOV and IKCO violatiem, the proposed assassment is based on the
four criteria in 30 CFR B45.13, which are:

» Hilstoxy of previous violatlioms at the same coal exploration
or surface coal mining operation.

] Seriousnass of tha violation.
L Degree of negligencs.

. Cood-faith efforts ta ahate the vwiolation,

Assasgment criteria are not used Eor proposing a civil penalty for the
sacond type of cegzation order--the FTACO. A ninimum $V50 daily fine is levied
agalnst tha viclator for each day of noncompliance with each underlying wviola-
tion in the NOV. For additional informatlon concerning assessment of FTACOs,
gaa Chapter 4,

The ecriteria to consider before iasuing a Notice af Proposed Assessment
(MOPA) for an WOV, or an IHCD are dafined and discusaed in the following para-
grapha., The criteria sre applied in spacific examples In Appendix E.

HISTORY JOINTS

The wviclation baing assassaed is assigned histery points for asch past

violation that has ocecurrad within ona year of the;

- Expiration of the administrative review time feor such past
violations or

. Gompletion of the administrative appeal processes for such
past viclations.

A violation is counted in the assessment of history points repgardiess of

whethar it received a penalty or was abated. A wviclation i{s net counted iFf it



i1s the subjact of a pending administrative or judicisl appeal or if the cime
to raquest administrative or judicial review has not axpirad.

SERTOUSNESS

Sériounnass 1a dafinad'as:

. A measure of the probability of potential or actual
environmental damage and the extent of the damage or

. The degree to which enforcement is ohstructed In the casa
of an adminiztrative requirement violation.

In agsessing the zerlousness of a violation, the first consideration must
be whether the violation can or did cause damage to the environment or is a

violation of an administrative requirement. These are discussed below.

Environmental Herm Violstions

Violations that thrasaten or actually cause envircrmental damage, personal
Injury, or property damage are considered envirommental harm violations:
agsassmwent of these violetlions iz deseribed in 30 CFR B45.13(b)(2). Envirom-
mental harm vielations fraquently invoelve topsoil handling, sediment control,
effluent limications, operating without a permit, backfilling and grading,
spoll dispesal, mishandling of acid or toxic materials, or ravegetation.

Agseasment procedures are concerned with the jmpact {e.g., tha avent)
that the regulation is designed to prevent (Appendix A). In the case of the
environmental harm violation, the impact is the environental harm, personal
injury, or property damage that could or does yesult from a wiclatisn.

The assessment of seriousness for anvironmental hara violations hag two
compensnts: the probability of occurrence and the extent of actual or potantial
damage. The first component is a determination of whethsr the anvironmental
damage cccurred or is likely to occur. The second component is a measure of
how much damage has resulted or would result from the violation if the inspec-

tor had not cited the operator.



Probebility of Occurrence. The asszesement of probability of cccurrance

rafars to the cccurtence of damage that the vioclated standard was designed to

pravent.

In evaluating probability of ocourrance, the assesgor muat first distin-
guish betwaen the violation involved and the impact or envirommental harm it
was designed to prevent. Where more than one type of enviromnmental damage
could result from a violation, the assessor usas the primary Imwpact for deter-
mining probability (the impact that would result in the greatest actual or
potential damage).

Extent of Damage. The determination of extent of damage is a measure of
both actual and potential damage of &ll types; It Is not limited to the damages
concerned with the prime impact [dentifisd {in the probability determination,

discusaed abova.

The extent of damage {s agsessed after the assassor aexamines the facts
surrounding the damage and the physical svidence of the impacted ares. The
graatar tha actual environmental harm or damuage to property or peopls, the
more points will be assigned.

Datarmining the degrees of potential damage invelves reviewing the Informa-
tion and evaluating how much damags would have occurred under normal climatic
and operational conditions if the inspsctor had not cited the violation. Exam-

ples of the assesgment of envirommental harm violations are In Appendix B.

AdnInistrstive gnd Obgstruction Yiglatioms

An administrative viclation 1s one that may prevent the inspector from
reviewlng the oversll operations of the mine to determine compliance with the
Act and the regulationa; see 30 CFR 845.13(b){2){E)(111). Such viclations may
also prevent the public from identifying the mine site or exercizing Lts rights
under the Act. These viclations generally involve the permittea’s fallure to

keap records, thereby obstructing the inspector from evaluating compllance, or
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the failure to post a proper permit sign, possibly hindaring public or inspec-

tar ldentification of a mine sitae,

Whan the viclation constitutes an obztruction, the seriousmness evaluation
iz hased on the degrse to which the violation preventsd or impedad enforcement
by an inspactor or review initiated by the public. The major diastinetion made

An asgessing administrativae vioclationa is agtus]l verasus poteptiasl obatruction

to the fngpector and the public.

NEGLIGENCE

Asgessing thls criterion involves a detsrmination of the parmittee’s
degree of fault in committing a violation, eithar through an act or the Failurs
to act. MNegligence iz addressed in 30 CFR B45.13¢(b)¢(3). Conditions Invelving
degree of fault are discussed below,

No Negligsnce

The regulations define no negligence as an inadvertent violation that "was
unavoidable by tha exercise of reasonable care” [30 CFR 845.13(B)(3)(11) (a1,
such &z a violation resulting from vandallsm or an act of Ged, Examplesz of
acts of God include floods, earthquakes, and fires. While the permittee cannot
prevent vandalism or acts of God, it would be negligent not to correet a viola-
tion resulting from either condition. A non-negligent vislation caused by
vandalism or an act of God can become negligent if the oparator does not cor-
rect it promptly.

When no negligence on the part of the permittss {including smpleyaes and

subcontracters) can be discerned, no peints are assessed.



Hegligence
The regulations define negligence as:

...the failure of a permittea to prevent the ocourrence of
any viclation of his or her permit or any requirement of
tha Act or thia Chapter due to Iindifference, lack of dili-
gence, or lack af reascnable care, or the failure to abate
any violation of such permit or the Act due to indiffer-
ence, lack of diligence, or lack of reasonsble care. [30
CFR 845.13{(b){(3){1L}(B}]

Mepgligence, therefora, is the failure of a permittee to exerclse the
depres of care normally expected of a reasonable person. HNegligent acta in-
clude committing a viclation, falling to do scmething that 1z required, or not

exsrclsing reasonable care in attempting te do that which 1a required.

Ignorance of the law is not &4 no-negligence situation; permittees are

trequired to know the regulations.

4 permittee Is also responsible for all that cccurs on the permittee’s

site, including negligent acts or omissions by an employee or subcontractor

wvorking at the site if reasonable care was not exercised.

The regulations define this condition as "reckless, knowing, or inten-
tional comduct™ {30 CFR 845.13(b)(3)}(Li){C)[. A permittee 15 consldered reck-
lesz when a reasonsble person undar the same circumstances would have baen
aware of the potential damage or harm that could result from amn action or
failure to taks an action, Knowing or intentiomal conduct occurs when the
permittee Is aware that he or she f{s or will be in violation and fails to

correct or avold the situation,



GOOD - FATTH ABATEWENT EFFORTS

The finnl.critarian provides A method for considering the permittee’s
demonstratad degree of good faith in attempting to #chieve compliance affer
nwotification of a violation. While the degree of fault detarmination concerns
behavior before a vialation is lagued, goed-faith detarminations are concerned
with the permittee’s actions following notification of ths violation.

Under the regulations, good-falth points are awardad when a patmittas
abates with rapid compliance using e¥tracrdinary measuree. Good-Ffaith points
ara deducted from the total assigned points. As definad by Section
B&45.13(b)(4){11){A) of the regulacions, rapld complisnce takes place when:

...the parsen to whom the notice or order was {ssued took
extraordinary measures to abate the violation in tha short-

@st possible time gpd that abatement waz achieved before
the tine set for sbatemant.

Several facters should ba congiderad in detarmining if extraordinary
measurss were used in addition to rapid abatemant:

. fniciagive: How quickly the operator started working to
abate tha violation,

. continued abatement Effort: The operator’'s persistence in elimina-
ting the problem or wviolation.

» Sompicment of Besources: Sacuring additional aquipment ox

personnel, interrupting coal production, expending extra
hours and resources, or taking other measures to quickly
ramedy the situation,

Good-faith points can ba awarded only when & violation has bean abated,
Bacause of the length of most abatement periods, geod-faith peints typlcally

are awarded during the Informal conference or appeal process.

The assassor may award good-faith points upon receipt of & termination
notice, the recommendation of the inspector, or information submitted by the
operator (lf the Iinspector sgrees). Good-faith points are not awarded when no

remedial action is prescribed or no sbatement date is set by the inspeecteor.
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CHAFTER 4

ASSESSMENT MECHANTGS

The mechanics for assessing penalties for NOVWs, THCOs, and FTACO= ara

presentad i{n this chapter. A penslty muyst be azsessed for all NOVs recelving
31 points or more and for all cessation orders. A penalty may be assessed for

HOVs recelving 30 points or lass.

NOV vwiolations ara assessed in two categories: environmental harm viola-

tions or administrative wviolations.

When the inspector has daterminesd that a violation poses an imminent
dangsr to the health or safety of the public or there is aignificant Imminent
environmental harm, an IHCO is issued. The probability of occurtence (serious-
nesd and extent of damsge)} for IEGOs may result in assignment of more peints
than for an HOV. '

Asgegsment procedures for an IHOD are the same as for an envirommental
harm NOV, except that an THCO will glways result in & penalty regardlese of the
number of total peints assigned,

If a viclation contalned in an IHCO has not been abated within the pre-
scribad abatement perind, an FTACO would not be lssued; however, a minimupy
750 dafly fine (for a perlod not to exceed 30 days) 1s levied against the
violator until abatement iz complata,

Environnentsl Heym Violacions
Penalty points can be assipgnad based on the number of past violations

{history of previous violations}, and the seriousnazs and negligence assoclated

with the viclatlion. Points may also be awarded for good-faith abatement

11



efforta. Tha mechanics of aseigning points in each category is described

halow,

PN :

AV’

L. Violation History. OSMRE can assign up to 30 history points

haged on the number of past wviclations related to the particular coal =x-
ploration or coal operation that 1s the subjact of the violatlion baing

asassgad,

In accordance with 30 CFR 845.13¢(h){1), the assigrment of history
poeints follows a strict formula:
. 1 peint per separate NOV violation issued at the same surface

ceal mining or exploration operation for which tha reviaw proe-
58 has been completed within the previous 12-month period,

. 3 points per saparats IHGCO or FTACO violation issuad at the
dame surface coal mining or exploration opsration for which the
review proceds has been coumpleted within the previous 12-month
period.

The regulations preclude assigning history points for violations
that ﬁra in the raview or appeal process; violations are Finalized and
can be considered for history points only when the entire administrative
and judiclal review or appeal processes are complete. If & permittes
falls to ezercise this right of review, the violation is finalized on the
expiration date of the permittea's right to review. WViolatlens are then
counted for 1 year after the review process has been completed or the
time for exercising the right of review has expired.

The milestones te be considered in datermining whether a past vio-
lation should be used in assigning hlstory points are described below.
Use whichever milestone is later.

1. 30 days from the date of service of the Notice of Proposed Assessment

(NOPA) or reassessment, unless a hearing or a confersnce is

requastad. NOTE: A requeat for a confarsnce suspends the time

clock until the permittee receives g letter conciuding the confer-
ance,

2. 15 days from the date of service of a conference conclusion lettar
{(Appendix C), unléss a hearing is requestad.

12



3. 30 days from the conclusion of an Administrative Law Judge deciziocn
or 30 days from an Interlor Board of Land Appeals dacision unless a
Judicial appeal is filed.

2. Ssriouysness. OSMBE may assign up o 30 points for sariousnass
depending on the degree of snvironmental harm, public health hazard, or

safety hazard. The serfiousness 1a asseased based on {a) probability of

occurrence and (b) axtent of damage;

{a) Probabillity of Occuizence: In accordance with 30 CFR
845.13(b){2){i), points are aszsigned based on the probability of
occurrence of the impact or environmental harm the vioclated standard
was deslgned to pravent:

gituation Eoinxa
Nona (Mo Chance of Occurrence) a
Insignificant Chance of Occurrence 1-4
Unlikely to Ocecur 3-9
Likely to Occur 10-14
Occurrad 15

Based on the facts in the inspector’s report and statement, the
assessor will determine the appropriate category in which tha
violation falls, Depanding on the mitigating ot compounding
circumstances provided by the Lngpactor, the aasesgor will

determine how many points to aseign within the peint range.

(by Extent of Damage: 30 CFR 845.13(b)(2){il}(A} and (B} dezcribe
the mathod for assigning extent of damage points:

Situation oipta
. Damage Confined Within the Permit Area 0-7
Damage Extending Qutzide the Parmit Arsa 8-13

Based on whather the impact remained within the permit area or
extended beyond it and the duration and extent as described Iin the
inspector’s report and statement, the assessor will determine the
appropriate category and the peints to assign within the particular

range.
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4, Jeiligence. OSMEE may azaign up to 25 points for negligence,
depending on the degree of fault of the person to whom the cltation was

issued or of others for whese conduct the parson is legelly responsible,
Three categorles of degree of fault ara defined by 30 CFR B45,13(b)(2):

Blvuation Polnty
No Negligenca Q
Hegligenca 1-12

Greater Degree of Fault than Negligence 13-25

Tha regulations further define "greater degree of Fault” as recklass,
knowing or Intentional conduct.

The initial assessmant points for seriousness and negligence are in
Appendix E,

4. Good-Falth. OSHRE can deduct up to 10 penalty paints for good
falth based on the degres of rapid abatement and extraordinary measures

[30 CFR 845.13(b)(&)]. To ba awarded good-faith polnts, evidence must
exist that the operator took extraordinary measures to abate the violation
in the shortast pessible tims and sbatement was achisved before the
abatewent date.

Exanplas of extracrdinary massures include: initiativa, continued
effort, use of extra squipment and/or persomnel, interrupted cosal produc-
tion, and working beyond normal hours.

Consideration of good faith may not be practical at the time the
viclation 1s assessed because of the length of the abatement period. In
thia case, the violation may be reassessed for goed faith aftar violation
abatement.

Adminjsryative and Obstruction Viclations

As with environmental harm violations, penalty points are assigned for

the mumbar of past violations {history of wislations), serlouspness of the

14
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violation, and negligence. Points can also be awarded for good-falth abatement

efforts.

1. ¥History. History points are assigned In the same manner de-
seribad for envirermental violatlionsa.

2. Serjoususss. COSMRE can assign up to 15 peints for serlousness
based on the eitent that enforcement of the Act and regulations was
obstructed by the vielation. Extent of damage and probability of occur-

rence are not assessaed for administraetive vicolations,

Situsgion Eointy

" 8light Obstruction 0-4
Modarate Obstruction 5-11
Significant Obrtruction 12-15

3. ¥egligance. Negligence iz the failure of a permittes to exercise
the dagree of care normally expacted of a reasonable person., Negligent
acts Include committing a vioclation, felling to do aomathing thet is
raquired, or not exercising reasonable care in attempting to do that
which i3 required.

Ignorance of the law 1s not & no-uegligence situatlion; permittees

are required to know the regulations.

4 permittae is also responsible for all that occurs on the permit-
tee's site, including negligent acts or omissions by an employee or sub-

contractor working at the site 1f reasonable care was not exerclsed.

4, Good Falth. Good faith peints are assligned In the same manner

described for emvirormental harm violations.

EAILURE TO ARATE CESSATION ORDER

If an operator iz served a written citation and fails to sbate the viola-

tfon within the prescribed time, an FTACO penalty of $750 per day is levied

15



(beginning on the date of reinspection) for no more than 30 days. If the

violation is abated, the day of abatement is not counted in the computation of
tha penalty amount.

15
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CHAPTER 5

MISGELLANEOUS INFORMATION

This chapter discusses miscellanecus Iinformation related te the panalty

ASgalSmant process.

CORTINVING VIOLAIIONT

Procedures for assessing a c¢ivil penalty for each day that a NOV or IHCO
goes unabated are found in 30 CFR 845.15. The factors listed in 30 CFR 845,13
mist ba considersd i{n making an assessment. The assasser may consider any
aconcmic benefit gained by the operator as a result of the fallure to comply.
if the viclation continues for 2 or more days and {s assigned more than 70

points, OSMRE must ad3eds a penalty for a minimm of 2 separate days.

The per-day penalty is computed by applylng the amount of the original
one-time assessment (determined by assessing history, seriousness, negligencs,
and good falth) multiplisd by the number of days that the violation continues

unabated; tha maximum penalty to be assessed for centinuing violations is
55,000 per violation per day.

The amount of the civil penalty per violatlioun 1s determinad by comverting
the number of points assigned for the violation to a dellar amount based on
the schedule shown in Appendix D.

SLYIL PENALTY FORMULA WAIVER

The OSMRE Director may waive the use of the formula set forth in 30 CFR
845.13 in computing the penalty 1f, upon considering exceptional factors pres-
ent in the particular cass, the penalty 1s demonstrably unjusc, The basis for
every walver must be fully documented in the case record. If the directer
walvez the usae of the formula, the criteria set forth in 30 CFR B845,13¢(b}) are
used to determine the appropriate penalty.

17



An operator hag the option of submitting additfonal information concerning
a viclation up to 15 days after service of the NOV or CO (3D CFR 845,17),
which will be conslideresd in the penalty agssessment process,

Both & copy of the NOPA and the assessment worksheet are sant to the
operator or permittee by cartified matl within 30 days of the issuance of the

netice or order.

LEN-DAY NOTICES

Where thare 1s an OSMRE-approvad State program and a violation of the
State program or any condition of an exploration approval or permitc {nposed
under a State progran ig ohserved, OSMRE isasuay Ten-Day Noticas to the appra-
ﬁrinte State regulatory authority (RA) and to the permittee notifying them of
the violation. The RA has 10 days after notification in which to taka
appropridts action to cause the violation to be corracted or te show good

cause for such failura,

If the R4 does not take appropriate action or show good cause for such
failure, the site will be reinspacted. If the violation continues to existc,
én NOV will be issued, If the violation {3 not abatad withim the prescribed
time, an FTACO will be issued unlesz an IHCO iz required at the time of rein-
gpaction. The citation will list the State regulations viclated. The sssessor
then assessas the violation in tha same manner as any other eitation would ha

RAsassad,

SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS

Bafore sending the NOPA, the assessor must be certain that sn NOV was
recelved by an operstor. The WOV is served sither in person to the aperator
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at the mine site or at his or her office or ig sent by certified mail (return

recalpt requested).

The inspector’a Fleld Office forwards a copy of the KOV to the apprepriat
asgassnent offlca, The manner in which the NOV was served must ba noted on

-]

the documsnt. If the violation was sent by mail, it should be marked "SENT EY

CERTIFIED MAIL", and should show the date It was mailed., It 13 important to

remember that this does not mean that service was accomplished, Proof of

garvice iz established by recalpt of the green return card signed and dated by

the operator or agent. Alsoc, If the green card or the document envelope is
marked ag "refused", service is cons{dared to have been accomplishad,

If the document snvelope ia returned as "unclaimed” or "undeliverabls®
(e.g., because the oparator woved and left no forwarding address), service Is
not accomplished. In =ither Instanca, the asseasor transfara the document

package to the sarvice contractor for personal service,

Once service of the NOV or THCO has been accomplished, the NOPA can ba
mailed (to the same address where service was accomplished)., If the sarvice
contractor will ba delivering the citation, the NOPA should be included: ser-
vice of both documents at the same time is walid,

The operator may take certaln actions that clearly indicate his or her
knowledge of the citation or NOPA. Such actions include requesting a confer-
ence, which would indicate knowledge of the NOPA; filing for an *R" hearing
{fact of tha vialatlion), which would indicate knewledge of tha ¢litatlon; £ilin
for expedited review, which would Indicate knowladge of tha FTAGO or IHGCD
eitation; or filing for temporary relief, which would indicate knowledge of
the citation. These actions are interpreted as service being accomplished,
even though service was not achieved by the routine methods discussed above.

Summarized In this section are the applicable regulations found at 43 CFR
&.1150 through 4,1158 that address the review procedures for filing a petition
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for review of a propesad elvil panalty assessment. This summary ghould ha
usad along with the regulations to ensure that the permittes complias with the

-/

legal requirements for requesting such a review,

Frocedures for Filing

A parson or entity charged with a ¢ivil penalty may file a patition for
review of the proposed aasessment In thae following manmner:

A, Tha vatitlon for review (the raguest for a formal hearing, accom-
panied by a check in the full amount of the proposed civil penalty
assessment) must be filed within 30 days of service of the NOPA with
tha:

Hearings Division

0ffice of Hearings and Appeals
U.5. Department of the Interiox
401% Wilson Boulevard
Arlington, Virginia 22203
(7033235-3800

OR

" B, If a request for an Iinformal assessment conference with OSMRE has
besn filed in a timsly mammer, pursuant te 30 CFR B45.18, and such
confarence was held, a petition for review of the proposed civil \J
penialty assessment pust be filed within 15 days of the receipt of
the conference afficer’s resulta, This petition must be filed with
the:

Hearings Divigion

Offica of Hearings and Appeals
U.5. Dapartment of the Interioer
4015 Wllsen Boulevard
Arlington, Virginia 22203
{703)235-3800

If there ism no petition for review of the proposed civil penalty assess-
ment filed in a timely mamnsr (such as described in & and B, above) and rhara
iz no application for review pending on the validity of the NOV or FTACO under
Section 525 of 3MCRA, the appropriateness of the civil penalty amount will be
deemad to be admitted and the ¢ivil penalty assessment will become final.
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Sontenty

If a patition for reviaw 1s filed with the 0ffice of Hearings and Appeals,
the following rules apply:

1. To ba complate, the petition for review must ba accompanied by full pay-

gant of the proposed civil pepalty (cashier’s check or bank monay ordar
nade payable to the Asssasment Cffice, OSMRE, with the viclation numbers

noted on the cheack); this check will be placed In an escrow aceount pend-
ing the asgessment determination.

2. The petition must contain a short statement of the reasons the ameunt of
the civil penalty is being contested.

3. The petition must identify all violations being contested.

4, The petition Is not considared complate unless accompanisd by full payment
for the proposed asasssment; no time extensien will be granted for meking

full payment., Failure to submit a gomplete peticion at the rime of filine
will result in a waivaer of all righta to contsst the viclatiens or the

amount of the penalty.
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Appendix A

EXAMPFLES OF INPACTS THE VIOLATED STANDARDS WEBE
DESIGNED TO FREVENT

This list of impacts, formerly known aa the eavents-to-prevent list, 1s to
be used as a gulde for identifying environmental and administrative Impacts
agaoclated with particular violations. While not all-inclusive, this list
containg those violariane liztad an the zecond page of the Mine Site Evalusation
Inspection Peport {MEIR} form, The user should select the most severs lmpact
asgociated with the violation, although the impact may net be listed or may
not be listed with the particular wvialation,

Permanant Interim
Regulntinn:l Ragulltionil violation? Impunt=3
715,11 Authorizationz to Oparate Obstruction te Enfarce-
717.11 uc4 - ment
Ble.11 715.12 8igns and Markers Inability of Publiec or
Bl7.11UG 717.120G Inspecter to Identify
for Enforcement Purpose
Public Health and Safety
Mining Outside Permic Area
Dapage o Property
816.102 713.14 Backfilling and Grading Delay or Failure of
B17.102UG 717.14UG Planned Land Use
Private Property Damape
1

The regulations shown indicate only the sesction of the rule i{n which the
violated standard appears. The user should consult the regulations to
detexrmine the appropriate subaection when issuing a viclation,

2 Categories that appear on Page 2 of the MEIR,

3 The lmpact is the environmental harm, personal injury, or property damage
that could or does result from a violation of a regulation or permit
condltion.

&

Denotes the section of the underground regulations.
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Fermpanent Interim
Eagulltianal Eagulltianll Violation? Impa¢t33

415.102 715.14 Highwall Elimination Public Health and Safety
B17.102U0G 717.120G
Delay or Failure of
Planned Land Use

815,84 715,18 Dama Erceion
B17,84UG 717.180G6
Watar Pollution
Public Health and Safety

S5edlment Depositlion

Floods
816.61 715.19 Blasting Public Health and Safety
817.&1UG
Ble.&2 Property Damage
817.62UG
BlG.64 Adverse Effects on Ground
2817.840G Water Aqulfers
Ble_ 66
Bl7.66U8G
816.67
B17.6700¢G
816,111 715,20 Revegetation Erceion
817.1110¢G F17.2006G
216.113 Dalay or Failure of Post
B17.1130G Mine Land Use
816.114
817.114U6 Water Pellution
Bl&6.1146
517.116UG Badimant Depoaition
81&,95
B17.95UG . Loss of Topsail
8l6.71 71l6.2 Spoil on the Down- Public Health and Safaty
B17.710G alope
8le.72 Dalay or Failure of Post
8L7.7206G Mine Land Usze
8l6.73 '
B817.730G - Property Damaga
Ble. 74
B17. 740G Water Pollution

Sedimant Depositcion




Parmanent Interin
Ragulntinnsl Rngulltinnsl violation? Impact=3
Ble_ 42 715.17 Effluent Limits Wacar Pollution
Bl7.42UG 717.17UG
Sediment Deposition
Fish ¥ills
Failure to Protect the
Hydrologle Balanca
816.41 715,17 Watar Monitoring Water Pollution
817.41U¢ F17.170G
Sedimant Depositien
Fish Kills
Failure to Protect the
Bydrologie Belance
Bl& .57 715,17 Buffer Zonss Eroaion
817.570G
Water Pollution
Fallure to Protect the
Bydrologic Balance
Bl6.150 715,17(L) Roads Water Follution
817.1500¢C L7.17{1uG
816._151 Erosion
B17.151U0G
Offgice Sediment Deposi-
tien
Public Health and Safaty
816,95 715.14¢1) Rills and Gullies Ercaiaon
817 _95U¢ 717.14(d)

Sediment Deposition

Fafilure or Dalay of Re-
vepatation

Delay or Feilure of Peosat
Mine Land Tsza

Fallure to Protact the
Hydrolegic Balance
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Parmanent Interin
Eagulatinn:l Rﬂgulatinnsl ' violation? Iupactn3
El6.71 715.15 Disposal of Excess Erosion
817.710G 717.150G Spoil
816.72 Sediment Depositlon
817.720G
B15.73 Delay or Failure of Post
817.73u¢ Mine Land Use
Bla.74
A17.7406 Public Health and Safery
816,22 715.1% Topacil Handling Contamination by Speil
817.220G 717.20UG Materiala
Delay or Failure of Re-
vegetation
Dalay or Failure of Post
Mine Land Uee
816.43 715.17 Sadiment Ponds Erosiot
B17.43UG 717.170G
Bl&.45 Sediment Dapoaiticn
817 .45UG
816.46 Water Pollution
817 .46UG
816.47 Puklic Health and Safety
817.47UG
B15.49 Failure to Protect the
817.459U¢G Hydrologic Balance
843.11 722.11 Mining Without a Fermit Environmental Harm Such
As: Water Pollutlon,
Erpaion, Loss of Top-
goll, Sediment Deposl-
tion; and Publiec Health
and Safety
843.11 722.11 Exceeding Permit Limits Envirommental Harm Sceh
843.120¢G F22.12UG Ae: Water PBollution,
Erosion, Loss of Top-
goil, Sediment Deposi-
tion: and Public Haalth
and Safety
81&.57 713.17 Distance Prohibitions Exosion
B17.57UG
522{e)Act 522(e)Act Water Pollution
Public Health and Safety
Property Damage
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Farmanent Interim
E:Eulltinnsl E:Eulntiﬂnsl ViolationZ Inplcts3

8l6.102 715.14 Toxic Materials Water Pollution
817.1020UG F17.140G

Destruction of Vegetation

Fallure to Praotect the
Rydrologic Balance




OTHER FREQUENMTLY-CITED VIOLATIONE TEAT DO XOT
AFPFEAR ON PAGE 2 OF THE METR FCEM

Parmanent Intatrlm 3
Ragulationsl Regulationsl Violation? Inpacts
773.11(&) 773.11{4) Failure to Bespuand to Delay or Failure of Post

Permit Deficlency Mine Land Use

Latter [Deficlenclas

Tdantified in the 504(d)

Review Process]
G442 .800(0) 942 800(bL) Fallura te Submit to the Delay or Failure of Post
200.11{a) 800.11¢a} Regulatory autheority Mine Land Use

an Adequate Performance

Bond
816.131 Bls.131 Temporary Cessation Delay or Failure of Post
8L7.131UG 817.131U0G Hine Land Use

ne
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¥iclation

Enviropmantal Harm Violations
Blasting
Topaoil
Failure to Post Parimeter Markers
Mining Without a Fermit
Dimscharge Structures
Effluent Limits
Handling Acld or Toxic Forming Materials
Fajlura to Pass all Surface Drainage Through a Siltation Structure
Revegatatlon
Spoil on the Downslope
Sanple Notice of Violation Forms

Adminigtrative/Obstruetion Vicolationa
Permit Sign
Fallure to Maintain Proper Blasting Records
Failure to Monitor Ground or Surface Waters
Failure to Certify Sedimentation Ponds
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Appandix B

ASSESSMENT EXAMPLES
ENVIRONMENTAL HABM VIOLATIONS

A. Histoxy of Previous Violations

Rafer te Chepter 4 for the formula to determine history points.
B.. Serlousness

Erobability of Ocourrence. Regulations pertaining to blasting (other than

records viclations) are deslgned to prevent Injury to the public and damags to
property. If personal injury or proparty damage has occurred, 15 points may be
assigned. 1If the event hes not occurred, likelihood is determined based on
whether the avent would have been likely at the time of the vielation, resulting
in a peint range of 10-14,

When blasting is taking place at a mine in a spsrsely populatad area where
the probability of off-site effects {s unlikely, 5-9 points should be assignad,
Where blasting is taking place at an f{solated mine and the probablility of off-
aite effects ia insignificant, 0-4 points should be assigned.

To asgess likelihood, the assassor must reconstruct the circumstances
surrounding the particular violation. Attention should be paid to whecther
persons wera nearby and to the nature and proximity of property. Fotential
damage should bhe assessed based on the probahility of injury to the public or
property In light of these facts. The azacasor must also detsrmine how careful
tha operator was. Each of these conaidarations may have an effect on the appro-
priate range of peints assignad for probability.

The regulation raquiring & permittee to publish the blasting schedule in

the newspaper 1s designed te prevent Injury to the public. The failure to
publish the schedule Is the viclationm, but the event is injury to tha public.
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Extent of Damage. When blasting takes place and the probablliry of injury
to public or damsge to preperty ia high, the potential {the poasibility of
property damage, serlous injury, or death) will be high. In these situations,
the assessor would assign points In the 8 to L5 ranga. In cases where the
possibility of property or personal damage 1s limiced, points will he assigned
in the 0-7 range.

For fallure to publish the blasting schedules in tha nawspaper, while actual
damage may not have occurred, the potentlal damage or injury might be estimated.
again, factors to consider include the rumber of people In the area, the proxim-
ity of housaes to the permit ares, the population density, the likelihood of
small children being in the area, and whether the area 1s fenced or guarded.

Tha assessor must examine Information provided by the inspector on the coverall
blasting techniques empleoyed by the permittee. A racord of diligence and ra-

sponsibility in blasting metheds will lowar the potential damage assipned for

the fallure to publish the blasting schedule.

¢, NWegiigsncs

While blasting 1g 2 dangerous activity, it has haeen refined to the point
that a carsful oparator should have very litﬁla chance of causing personal
injury or property damage. Because operators do not always exercise sufficiant
cara, however, the inspector must provide encugh Information for the assessor
to assess negligence accurately, The example of failure co publish blasting
schedules cited above demonstrates the difference between negligence {(0-12
points) and racklessness (13-20 points). If the operator failed te publish the
schedule as reguired but exhibited other precsutionary techﬁiquas. such as
posting a guard to keep people at a safa distance from blasting and sounding
warning signalsa, he would probably not be considered recklass, In such cases,
negligence would be assigned in the D-12 point range.



R._Good Falth

If a blasting violsation has already occurred, good-faith points will nor-
mally not be awardad, because no remsdial action is normally availahle to the

operator. Therefore, good faith would geldom be a factor in the assegsment of
blasting viclations.
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A, History of Previous Viglations
Refer to Chapter & for the formula to determina history peints.

B:  Ssziousness

Probebility of Qccurrence. Important conslderaticns in aaﬁeasing praba-
bility of occurrence for a delay in revegetation are the:

- Actual amount of topsoil lost or potentially leost in relation to the
total surface area disturbed, and the

. Cuality of the remaining topsell and substrats.

If the loss is 1/2 acre of topscil over a large permit area, It 1z 1nsiz-
nificant or unlikely revegetation will be delayed or may nmot geccur, 1-9 points
should be assigned. If the loss represents a significant portion of the total
area, then the violation should he assigned 10-14 points.

If the topsoil has not been saved and other suitable growing medium Is net
available, then the damage has cccurred and 15 points should be asuigned,

Extent of Damage. If topsoil iz lost from only a small portien of the
disturbed area, the dasmags would remain within the parmi{t ares; 0-7 points
should be assigned. In the Instances where large areaz are affected or actual
failure of revagetation is noted and drainage control structures are net in
place, dasmage 1s considered to extend outside the permit area, because ercsion

from unvegaetatad areas would affect land and water outside the parmit area.

In estimating the extent of damage, the assessor will be concerned with
how much of an arsa is or might be impacted and the likaly duration of the
event. The magnitude and duratlon of the avent would always be key factors in
the assessment. Additionally, areas where revegetation is not successful can
casily erode, leading te a potential or actual loes of growing medium; §-15
peints should be assigned.
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€. Negllgsuce

The assessment for degree of fault dapends on the specifics of the viola-
tion. An operator who uses reasonable cars in salvaging topsoil pricr to mining
on the major part of his permit area, but who {5 not diligent In salvaging the
topgoll for the sntire pernit area, is negligent; 0-12 points are aasigned. On
the other hand, a bulldozer opsrator pushing topsoil along with spoll into &
pit is committing a violation that a caraful operator would not have committed,
This is considered a reckless act; 13-20 points are aseigned. An operateor
pravicusly cited for not salvaging all available topsoil at this site is con-
sidered to have committed a knowing violation; 21-25 polnts are assligned,

D, _Good Faith

The procedures for assigning good-faith points are described in Chapter 4,

B-5

“/



at ¥io i
Refer to Chaptar 4 for the formmla to datermine history polnts.

B, Bericusnass

Probabllicy of Ocourrence. The requiremant for perimester markers {s te
ensure that the permittes knows where the permlt boundaries sare, thareby avoid-

ing any activity outside the approved permit araa. In addition, perimeter
markers assist {nspectora and citizena in determining if the permittee is re-
maining within the permittad area.

The savent has cccurred {f tha disturbance extends outside the permitftad
area; 15 pointe are assigned. Where the site Is Inactive, the probability of
mining activity occurring off the permit area iz low; 0-9 points are assigned.
If tha permit boundary is unmarked and mining activicy Iz continuing, the
ingpector must determine how closa the operation Is to the permit boundary and
the potential for the operator to mine beyond the permit boundary; 10-14 points

are assigned,

Extent of Dgmage. If mining has taken place off the parmit area, B-15
points should be assigned depending on the asmount of damage. If the permittas
hag not disturbed the area beyond the permit boundarias, the extent of damage

should be assipgned 0-7 points.

. Hegligence

A no-negligence situation would be one In which the perimeter markers were
removed through an act of vandalism, However, if the operator falled to replace
the perimeter markers promptly and did not disturb the area outside the permit
area, then thae violation would be considered negligent and 1-12 points should
be assigned, 1If the operator falled to promptly replace the markers and dis-
turbad off the permit area, then nagligence should be assigned 13-25 points,
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D. Good Faith

The procadures faor assigning good-faith points are described in Chapter 4.
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NINING WITHOUT 4 FERMII
A, History of Previoys Vioiationg
Refer to Chapter & for the formula to detarmine history points.

B. Sexicysness/Aduinlatrative

Probability of Occurrence. The most sericus situations are when an opera-
tor purposely mines outside the permit, operates without a perait (wildcatting),

and mines with an expired permit. In each case, the operator has not applied
for a permit, permit amendment, or remewal. In these instances, the event that
the violated standard is designed to prevent is dolng specific acts without an
approval, Because the evant has occurred in all cases, 15 points should be

aasigned.

Extent of Dapggs. An operator that purposely mines cutslide the permit or
iz a wildeatter will not have pested a reclametion bond for the disturbance and
12 likely to use improper mining techniques. Therafore, the extent of damage
should be assignad 15 points. When the oparator {g mining within the axpired
permit area and has not appliad for a new permlt, 8-14 pelnts should be
azsigned.

C. BNegllgence
Operating without a permit {(wildecatting) should be assigned 25 pointa.
When the operator purpesely mines outside the permit area or mines within the

explred parmit srea but has not applied for a naw permit, negligence should be
congldered knowing and willful and assigned 21-25 points.

D.  Good Rajth

The procedures for assigning good-faith points are described in Chapter 4.



BISCHARGE STRUGTURES
Ao History of Previous Wiolations

Refer to Chapter 4 for the formula to determine history points.

B.. Bsriousnexs

Probabiiity of Qucurrengs. Conditions that this staudard are desfgned to

prevent are erosion, water pollution, stream charmasl anlargsment, and distur-
bance of the hydrologic balance., Should any of these events ectually occur, 15
points should be assigned.

As with other violations of this typsa, topographlc and vegetative con-
glderations as well as proximity to the stream or other water sources and cli-
matic factors should be considered In determining the likelihood of the event
happening. ¥or ezamplae, 1if tha discharge strueture was not constructed or
shows evidenca of excessiva srosion and a stream Lz in proxinirty to the ztrue-
ture, stream chammel enlargement or sedimentation would be likely to oceur, and
peints in the likely range of 10-14 should be assigned.

Comversely, if the violation was cited during a period of low reinfall and
a vegetative covar was sufficient to filter zaediment from the discharge struc-
ture before leaving the parmlt area, the probability of the events happening
would be unlikely or inaignificant; 0.5 points should be asslgned.

Extant of Damage. First, the inspector should determine whether the actual
or potential damage that the violation was designad to prevent would remain
within the permit or would extend outside the permit area. If the dlscharge
structura was not constructed and heavy rains could be expected, the extent of
damage, such as sedimentation of & atream in proximi{ty to the structure, should
be detarmined. If flooding or sedimentation of the stream were likaly, the
damage could axtend off permit, and points in the ranga of 6-15 should be
assigned.
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if gediment from = pond fallure could be contained on the permit by othar
drainage controls, heavy vegetation, or land topography and no stream was near-

by, the damage c¢ould be assigned in the 0-7 point range.

G, Negliigence

Failura to conatruct a diacharge structure In accordance with the approved
plan may be assassed as a greater dagrae of fault than negligence particularly
whan plana for the discharge structurs are dﬁtuiled in the permit. Accordingly,
13-25 points should be assigned.

If the diacharge structure was constructed but had dateriorated and no

immediate danger of poend failure exists, negligence should be zssignad in the

lower tange of 0-12 points.

D. Good Faith

The procedurea for assigning good-faith peints are describaed in Chapter 4.
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A. History of Previous Viclatfong

Refer ta Chapter 4 for the foraula to determine history points.

E. Sericusness

fxohabilivy of Ocguigzence. This standard 13 designed to prevent events
that are much the ssme as the avents for the fallure-to-pass violation (water
pellution, sedimentation of streams, and fish kills). Az with the failure-to-
pass violation, several water samples or field tests are usually acceptabls as
documentation that the viclation has taken place. To determine if the event

the violation i1s designed to pravent has taken place, reports and other dacu-

mentation must ba reviawad.

The event of water pollution will be considered to have occurred only 1f
water samples show that the receiving stream was Iimpacted by the affluent.
This generally requires four samples;

. An upatream sample to establish the background or existing
conditlon of the recelving atream,

. A gampla of the effluent before it anters the receiving
stream.

. 4 sample of the mixing zone where the effluent meets and
blends inte the receiving stream.

» A sample downstream of the mixing zone,

If water pollution has oceurred and can be shown graphically, the maximum
nugber of points (15) will be assigned. If an inspector abserves black water
belng diacharged, samples only the effluent, and finds that it exceeds the
limir, the probability of polluticn can only be considered as likely. Tha
stream must ba zampled in all four locations before the inspector can be cer-

tain that a mining operation is the source of the pollution,

If the drainage not meeting effluent limitations Falls to reach an off-
permit stream or other water source, the svent will be considered not to have

B-11
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cecurred, In this case, the proximity to the stfaan and related topographie
and climatological features should be evaluated to determine how likely the
event {8 te ogccur. If the discharge is digslipated by a vegetative cover an a2
relatively flat area snd the neareat atream is a mile away, the probabllity of
aceurrence would be asaigned in the insignificant (1-4) or unlikely (5-9) range
of points. However, should the discharge travel down a steep, unvegetatad
slope with the stream in proximicy to the toe of the slope, tha probability of
occurrence would be likely and assigned in the range of 10-14 points.

Extent of Damage. As with the failure to pass all surface drainsges through
a gedinentation pond violation, the first question to answer for the extent of
damage 1z whether the impact the viclated standard is desipned te prevent
remains on the permit or extends outsfde the parmit area. Should the discharge
extend outszide tha parmit, 8-15 polnts must be assigned. The extent of damags
will most likely be dafined through water sample results and volume estimarions
of the discharge as well as characteristics of the receiving stream. A low
volume discharge that only marginally exceeds effluent limitations flowing into
an already polluted stresm of limited usaga would rasult in an sssignment in
the lowar end of the B8-15 poilnt range. Convarsely, a high volume discharge of
poor quality flowing into a native trout straam could cause severe anvironmantal
harm as establishad by water samples; this condition ghould be agsigned at the

maximum end of the range.

Q.—Negligence

In the event an sperator has heen clted for pumping water that dees not
meet the affluent limitations inte a stream, & greater degree of fault than
negligence 1z exhibited and the assessor should assign points in the high range
of 13-25 to exhibit the reckless or willful conduct,

Should an automatic treatment system malfunction, resulting in an unap-
proved diacharge, thas desgree of fault may be considerad to he a lack of reasen-
able care, and an assignment of 0-12 peints may be made depending on the degree
to which the operator's reaponsib{lity was compromised. Adjustment of pelnt
totals within the ranges will be influenced by the operator’s awaraness of
possible esffects of his actions. If the permit specifically indicates that a
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high-quality stream is in proximity to treatment facilities, the operator should
exarcise extra care In assuring that no discharges exceading effluent

limitations do oecur.

D. Good Faith

The procedures for assigning good-falth points are described in Chaptar 4.
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izto Yiolations

Refer to Chapter 4 for the formala to determine history polnts.
B, Bexicusnsas

Frobebility of Ovourrence. This standard is designed te prevent such

events as water pollution and destruction of ;agatatiun. Topographical
features, proximity of vepetation and water sourcas, amount of toxie material;
and drainage and climatologlcal factors must be taken Inteo account to determine
the likelihood of tha event cccurring; 10-14 points should be assighed, If
water samples Indicate that pollution has oeourred or & wisual inapection in-
dicates vegetation has baen dastroyed as a result of drainage from acid or
toxic-forming materials, the event can be considered to have occurrad and 15
polnts should be aszigned,

Should the drainagse ba collected in a hasin that will overtop with a rain-
fall and a stream or vegatatad area s nearby, the event will be likely to
happan and 10-14 points should be assigned.

If drainage from such materials remains on the permit due to flat tope-
graphy, and no vegetation has been destroved, the event may be unlikely or
insignificant and 0-9 points should be assigned accordingly.

Extent of Potential or Actusl Damage. If the actual or potentlal damage

would remain on the permit and the vegetation on the permitted arsa was
destroyed but there was mno petential for damage exitending outslde the permit
area, points within the 0-7 range would be assigned.

Should vegatation off the parmit ba dastroyad or straamz or other water

sourcaes pollutad, polnts In the 8§-15 range should be assigned. If the strean
was high quality and the drainage caused a detectable change In gquality, points
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near the maximum should be assigned. If only a small volume of drainage en-
tered the stream and caused no detactable water quality change, points in the

lower range for off-si{te damage should be assigned.

G, Negligance

If an opsrator axpects to sncounter aignificant anounts of toxic matsrials,
the permit should contain gonditions for tha =afe handling of such material.
1f this is the case, and affected drainage enters a high-quality stream, the
oparator may have acted In a reckless mammer, and points in tha range of 13-25
maey be assigned to reflect this behavior.

If drainage and traatment contrels are {n place and a short-tarm lapse in

treatment occcurs, ordinary negligence may apply, and points In the 0-12 range
way be asaigned,

D. Good Faith

The procedures for aseigning good-falth points are described in Chaptar 4.
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